THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

THE VILLAGE PALOS VERDES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
February 12, 2009

CALL TO ORDER

The following are the Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Village Palos Verdes
Homeowners Association, held on Thursday, February 12, 2009 in Redondo Beach, California. The
President stated that a Quorum was present and called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, Member at Large.

OTHERS PRESENT
Association Manager with Scott Property Management; On-Site Maintenance person; and Recording
Secretary with HOA Organizers, Inc.

SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS
The President introduced Scott Management Company.

OPEN FORUM

Members will be permitted to speak for 2 minutes each to allow everyone an opportunity to speak. The
President explained that some of the items brought up in Open Forum may be recorded but not
responded to until a later date, but she assured members that all items will be addressed in the near
future.

498 Palos Verdes Blvd

The homeowner asked if they meetings are recorded and whether they are public meetings. The
President stated that the meetings are not tape recorded, but there is a Recording Secretary present.
The homeowner also brought up the Member at Large lack of involvement on the Executive
Committee. The President stated that the Member at Large submitted a letter to the Board, and a
response to the Member at Large was posted to the Association’s website.

The homeowner also stated that some units were being inspected by the contractor and wanted to
know why the inspections were taking place given the hold on the construction project. She also asked
if contractors were being paid. She wanted to know if Professional Services has already been
contracted. The President states that the Association is in project planning mode, not in project
construction mode. The planning stage is at gratis in preparation. If there is any ashestos testing or
anything of that nature, the contractor does bill the Association. The President stated that there is a
current contract with the contractor, Professional Services. The Property Manager stated that in
addition, a number of coated decks were inspected.

444 Calle Miramar

The homeowner asked the Board about whether they knew about the energy tax credit. Specifically,
he stated that individual unit owners should be able to obtain copies of the invoices for the window
replacements for each of their own respective units to be able to apply for the energy tax credits. The
President stated that the Association had previously looked into the matter, but they were told
individuals would not be able to get the benefits. The President stated that the Board would research
this matter again and will report to the homeowners.

Village Palos Verdes HOA
February 12, 2009 - Page #1 of 5.



456 Palos Verdes Blvd

The homeowner stated that with regard to the litigation, he understood that for a response on mediation
was February 9, 2009, and he wanted to know the status. The President stated that a response was
received, and the Board is currently working on scheduling. Further updates will be posted on the
website.

447 Camino de las Colinas

The homeowner stated that he noticed that the bank that the Association was working with for the loan
is on a watch list and wanted to know what the Board is doing to protect the funds. The Treasurer
stated that the monies with the bank are FDIC insured and are federally protected. The Board is
intending on leaving the funds at the bank at this time.

447 Camino de las Colinas

The homeowner added to the previous discussion and stated that she didn’t understand the Board’s
response. She had additional questions regarding the loan initiation fee, which was $100,000 that the
Association deposited with the bank. The President stated that initially, the loan was going through as
planned. Then, the loan was denied as a result of the litigation, so the funds were used to purchase a
CD account.

404 . Palos Verdes Blvd

The homeowner asked about the special assessment payments. He stated that he was able to pay the
special assessment in full but waned to ask if he could continue to only make payments in the amount
of $600 a month until the litigation was resolved. The Treasurer stated that the $600 a month applies
directly to the special assessment principal. When a loan is established, the membership will then be
given the option of paying the assessment up front or to participate in the loan, which would add
interest to the assessment. Until the litigation has been resolved, owners will be permitted to continue
to make monthly payments in the amount of $600.00.

137 Calle Mayor

The homeowner stated that while the Association may have good legal ground, she asked if the Board
has considered all possible outcomes of the lawsuit. The President stated that the details of the
Association’s strategy cannot be discussed at this time. The President added that the special
assessment was handled properly, in accordance with the law.

419 Camino de las Colinas

The homeowner stated that she just read the latest correspondence that the Board had sent to the
membership and suggested that responses should be sent to members several days prior to the
meeting to give owners an opportunity to read and come to meetings prepared. The President stated
that the letter was also posted on the Association’s web-site and encouraged owners to regularly visit
the web site for quicker updates. The President also said that the information was sent as soon as it
was available.

The homeowner expressed a concern about performance bonds for the construction project and
wanted an explanation as to why performance bonds were not obtained. The President responded by
stating that the contracts were value sensitive, which devalued the need for performance bonds. The
President reminded owners that correspondence was sent to all members in September of 2007, then
again in October and December of 2008, specifically addressing performance bonds. The President
provided details of the contract structure by stating that the contractor must purchase materials for a
phase of construction, the work is then done for the phase, then the Association is billed for the

Village Palos Verdes HOA
February 12, 2009 — Page #2 of 5.



material and the work specific to the phase. Once all of the construction phases are done, the
Association will then release the final 10% of the contract, which should be the contractor's profit.
Therefore, the Association is protected by making sure that each phase gets completed properly before
making any payments for the completed phase and having the contractor move to the next phase. The
President stated that the performance bonds cost approximately $350,000, and it was not financially
beneficial to secure the performance bonds considering the way in which the contract was formed.

402 Palos Verdes Bivd

The homeowner stated that he understood several people looked into the option of a performance
bond and that it didn’'t make sense. The President added that the Board has researched the matter,
received advice on the matter, included the ERC Committee on the decision, and it was a unanimous
decision to handle the construction without the performance bond. The Vice President also stated that
the Board has repeatedly invited people to participate in the planning process, and there had been very
few people who actually stepped forward.

427 Camino de las Colinas

The homeowner mentioned that there was a nearby new construction of condominium complexes. She
reported that the 2 bedrooms, 2 bathrooms at 1,500 square feet were listed for $1,029,000 and
compared the value to Village Palos Verdes and stated the completed construction will add significant
value to the community.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The Board reviewed the minutes of January 8, 2009. The Treasurer moved to approve minutes, the
Secretary seconded the minutes. The President stated that before the minutes are posted, the names
of residents should be removed. The Board unanimously approved the minutes and agreed to remove
the resident names in the Open Session section before posting them to the website.

TREASURER’S REPORT

Reserve Investments

The Treasurer reviewed the financial statements as of January 31, 2009 and reported that there is a
CD accounts coming to term on February 17, 2009 in the amount of $60,000. The Treasurer made a
motion to roll the $60,000 into another CD for a 3 month term. The President seconded the motion.
The Member at Large asked what the interest rate would be, and the Treasurer stated that the rates
have been relatively low. Currently, the interest rate is at 1%, which is why the Treasurer
recommended a short-term investment. The Board unanimously approved the motion. The Treasurer
stated that for the CD accounts that are scheduled to mature on March 10, 2009 and later, the
suggested that those be re-invested and laddered. She will obtain interest rates before the next
meeting and recommended waiting until the next meeting date before deciding on what to do. The
Board agreed to discuss the CD accounts at the next Board of Directors meeting.

Delinquencies / Resolution to Record Lien

The Association Manager reported that 433 Camino de las Colinas was taken over by the bank, and
there is currently a buyer for the unit. Upon communicating with the bank representative, the
Association Manager reported that the bank plans on paying the special assessment and back dues for
the unit.

The Secretary stated that there are roughly 20 units that have delinquent balances on their special
assessments. She added that the Board should start the collection process. The President stated that
there is a delinquency policy that the Board needs to uphold. Because of the management company

Village Palos Verdes HOA
February 12, 2009 — Page #3 of 5.



transition, the Board provided a one month grace period, but the President agreed that collections need
to continue to be pursued. The Board instructed the Property Manager to move forward with collection
process on delinquent accounts.

MAINTENANCE REPORT

Maintenance Requests

A homeowner reported a roof leak, and the issue was forwarded to on-site maintenance person for
investigation and necessary repairs. The on-site maintenance person stated that he investigated the
maintenance issue and identified the leak to be from a pinhole in the water heater, causing a leak from
the AC vent all the way to the garage. The owner filed an insurance claim and has been handling the
restoration process. The Member at Large asked if there were any additional maintenance request that
on-site maintenance person received directly. The on-site maintenance person reported that there
were 4 leaks reported, two of which were air conditioning issues. The Member at Large stated that he
doesn’t believe that on-site maintenance person should take reports directly and should forward issues
to the management company to make sure that the requests are dealt with through the proper
channels. The President stated that she personally received maintenance requests left in her mailbox,
so during the transition, this is to be expected. The Member at Large stated that even if maintenance
issues are being disrupted for the time being while homeowners adjust to the method of relaying
maintenance problems, homeowners need to know that the proper system is to go through the
management company.

The on-site maintenance person stated that one of the reported leaks seemed to be a roof leak and
was a pitch issue on the roof. He thinks that when the construction takes place, it should be resolved.
Another unit was a flashing issue, and it's a similar sloping problem.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Review and Discuss the Virginia Graeme Baker Pool and Spa Safety Act

The Association Manager stated that there is a new pool act, The Virginia Graeme Baker Pool and Spa
Safety Act, and he provided an overview. He stated that the spa suction has to be modified for safety
reasons to prevent drowning. The pool has to have split drains with two covers, and the drain covers
have to be reconstructed. They have to be far enough apart so that someone will not be able to drown.
He stated that the County of Los Angeles is being strict about this law. The Association Manager
stated that unless the pool is being drained or resurfaced, the Act will not be imposed or required at this
time. The Association Manager contacted the Association insurance carrier, however, to inquire about
the Act and whether the Association should pursue the repairs or not. The insurance carrier stated that
this could be a liability issue and advised the Association to make the repairs as soon as possible.
There is a proposal from Discount Pool provided to address the north and south pools. The Treasurer
stated that the Association should take care of this as soon as possible because of the liability issues.
The President stated that the Board needs to look into the matter to see if the funds are available. This
was not budgeted for. The Vice President stated that additional bids should be received for
comparative purposes. The Secretary stated that this project could be funded by passing an
emergency special assessment because it is a life/safety issue that was unforeseen. The Association
Manager was instructed to obtain additional proposals for the project.

Insurance Policies (Master/Umbrella/D&0/Workers Comp) - Board Resolution to Borrow from
Reserves (Insurance) — Standard Annual Process

The Association Manager stated that the insurance policies are up for renewal on February 16, 2009.
The Board considered passing a resolution that stated, all policies were factored for a total of $54,690

Village Palos Verdes HOA
February 12, 2009 ~ Page #4 of 5.



for the upcoming year. The Association will borrow money from the reserves and will replenish the
reserves within a year, and notify the membership. The Resolution will be included with the minutes.
The Secretary moved to approve the resolution to transfer the funds in the amount of $54,690 to the
operating to pay the insurance premiums up front, then to repay the reserve account from the operating
account in monthly installments, but to repay the total amount borrowed within a year. The Member at
Large seconded the motion, and the resolution was unanimously approved.

Incoming Correspondence
The Association Manager received communication from a homeowner who thanked the Board for all of
the Board’s endeavors. No action was required on the email received.

147 Calle Mayor — Received complaint from unit, stating they experience loud noise from their
neighboring unit. The President stated that a letter was supposed to be sent last month to the
offending unit owner, so she asked the Association Manager to research last month’s Board package
to find out if a letter was sent. The President added that the Association Manager could also obtain
information on the prior complaint. The President recommended sending a reminder letter to
membership regarding noise issues. She said that although this was sent in the past, it should be sent
again, included in the escrow package and posted on the Association’s website.

Outgoing Correspondence

A homeowner requested for the homeowner roster and received a copy of the roster. The Member at
Large noted that the letter sent to the homeowner stated that it was sent on behalf of the Board of
Directors, but he noted that he never saw the letter. The letter should specify that it's coming from the
Executive Committee. The President said that since November, some correspondence was not
addressed and was handled as quickly as possible due to the management transitions. There are
some inconsistencies with the correspondence because of the transitions, and the Treasurer
responded to some things on the website in the interim on behalf of the Board. The standard process
of forwarding information to all Board Members may not have been followed in an attempt to ensure
that owners were responded to in a timely manner.

Closed Escrows
Nothing was noted at this time.

OLD BUSINESS
The Secretary provided letters to the President that has not yet been responded to. They will either be

given to ERC or to Scott Management to follow-up.

ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned to at 8:45 P.M. The Board
noted that affirmation of executive meeting matters will be reported to comply with Civil Code
§1363.05.(c) of The Davis-Sterling Act and is not to be construed for any other purpose. It was noted
that an Executive meeting was held on January 8, 2009 for contracts, legal matters, member
discipline/issues and personnel; and member hearings.

Submitted by: Recording Secretary with HOA Organizers, Inc.

Village Palos Verdes HOA
February 12, 2009 — Page #5 of 5.



